DISSENTING OPINION

of the Soviet Member of the International Military Tribunal, Major General
Jurisorudence I.T. Nikitchenke on the Judgment concerning defendants
Schacht, von Papen, Fritgeche and Hess and the accused organizations:
Reichscabinet, General Staff, and OKW,

The Tritunzl decided:

a) to acquit the defendants Hjalmar Schacht, Franz von Paven and

Hans Fritzsche;

b) to sentence the defendant Rudolf Heas to life imvrisonment;

c) not to declare criminal the following orgenizations: the

Reichscabinet, General Staff and OKW,

In this resmect I can not agree with the decision adooted by the
Tribunel as it does not corresvond to the facts of the case and is based

on incorrect conclusions.

1. THE UNFOUNDED ACQUITTAL OF DEFENDANT SCHACHT

The evidence, submitted tc the Tribunal in the case of Schacht, confirms
the following facts:

a) Schacht established contact with Goering in December 1930 and with
Hitler at the beginning of 1931. He subsequently established contact between
the leadership of the Nazi Party and the foremost revresentatives of the German
industrial end financial circles. This, in particular, is confirmed ®y the
testimony of Witness Severing (Transcript, Afternoon Session, 23 May 1946;
also US-615).

b) In July 1232 Schacht demanded that Paven resign his vpost as Reich
Caancellor in favour of Hitler. This fact is confirmed by Paven's testimony
at the vreliminary interrogation and by Schacht's own testimony in Court
Transcrip, Afternoon Session, 2 May 1946.

c) In November 1932, Schacht collected siznatures of German indus-
trialists, urging them to come out for Hitler's apvointment as Reich Chancell
On Navember 12, 1932, Schacht wrote to Hitler:

"I have no doubt that the wzy we are directing the course
of events can only lead to your apuointment as Reich




Chancellor. We are trying to secure a large number of

signatures among the industrial circles to ensure your

apoointment to this post." (E - 6, US-773, PS-3901, US-837).

d) In February 1933 Schacit organized the financing of the ore-election
camoaign cdnducted by the Nazy Party, and demanded at the conference of
Hitler and Goering with the industrialists, that the latter vprovide three
million marks (D-203). Schacht admitted in Court that he had pointed out
the necessity for vroviding the Nazi leaders with-this sum (Transcriv,
Afternoon Session, 3 May 1946), while the Defendant Funk and the former mem-
ber of the management of "I.G. Farbenindustrie" Schnitzler, who were
present at this conference, both confirmed that it was Schacht who was
the Initiater of the financing of the vre-election camvaign. (Transcrivt
4 July 1946, and EC-439, US-618).

e) Utilizing his prestige, Schacht also reveatedly admitted in his
public statements that he asked for the support in the elections of Dboth
the Nazi Party and of Hitler. (US-615, Transcrivt, Afternoon Session,

2 May 1945).
On 2 august, 1932, Schacht wrote to ditler:
"o matter where my activities lead me in the near future,

even if some day you see me imprisoned in a fortress, you
can always depend on me as your loyal aide." (EC-457, US-619).

: S s . S ovd delihevetel o §-the Wagd B 3
actively @aided in the seizure of vower in Germany by the Fascists. ZEven
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prior to his apvointment as Plenivotentiary for War Economy, and immediately
after the seizure of power by the Nazis, Schacht led in vlanning and develo-
ping the German Armaments, as follows:

a) On 17 March, 1933, Schacht was apvointed President of the Reichsbank
(PS-3021, US-11), and as he himself stated in a sveech before his Reichsbank
colleasues on 21 March 1938, the Reichsbank under his management was "none
other than a national socialist institution” (Transcriét, Afternoon Session,
3 May 1946).

b) In August, 1934, Schacht was appointed Reich Minister of Economy
(PS-3021; US-11). His Ministry "was given the task of carrying out the eco-
nomic prevaration for war." (EC-128, US-623). A special decree granted
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in the field of economy ["Reichsgesetzblatt! for41934, Part 1, p. 565/.

¢/ Making use of these powers in 1934 Schacht launched upon the
execution of the "new vrogram" developed by him /"Reichsgesetzblatt", 1934,.
Pert I, v. 826/, and, as Schacht I myself noted in his speech of 29
November, 1938, this organization played a tremendous vart in the course
of Germany's rearmament ?EC-61i, U -62/.

d/ For the purpese of the most effective execution of this "new
progran” Schacht used the property and means of those vpolitical enemies of
the Ngzi Regime, who either hecame the victims of terror or were forced to
emigrate [Schacht's note to Hitler of 3 May 1939, PS-1168, US-137/.

Schacht used swindler's tactics and coercion" in an effort to acquire
row material and foreign currency for ermements" /Affidavit of Vice-
President of the Reichsbank, Puhl EC-437, US-624/.

/e During the very first dey of his association with Reichsbank,
Schacht issucd a series of decrees /27‘October 1933, 23 March 1934, 19
February 1935/, which in the long run helped realize the broad program of the
financing of armgments, developed by iim, and with the ald of which, as ke
testified, he "had found the way to finance the rearmament program.”

In his $peech in Leipzig on 1 March, 1935, Schacht, while summing up
nis preceding economic and financial activities, announced ".,..everything
that I say and 30 has the Fuelrer's full agreement and I shall not do or say
anything which is not aporoved by the Fuehrer" [fUSSR-427/.

Having become the Plenivctentiary General for War Fconomy, Schacht
wnified under himself the leadership of the cntiie German cconomy and through
his offerts the establishment of .the Hitlerite war machine was accomplished.

e/ The secret law of 21 May, 1935, which appointed Schacht tie
Plenivotentiary General for War Zconomy, states as follows: "The task of
the Plenipotentiary General for Wer Economy is t0 place all the economic
resources in the service of warfare." "The Plenivotentiary General for War
Economy within the fremework of his functions is given the right to issue
legal orders, deviating from the existing lews." "He is the responsible
heed for financing wars tarough the Heich Ministry and the Reichsbank,"
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b/ Schacht financed German armements through the MEFO system of
promissory notes, which was a swindling venture on a national scale that has
no precedent, and the success of which was deoendent uvon the reslization of
the aggressive plans of the Hitlerites. It was because of this that
Schacht set 1942 as the date when the MEFC notes were to mature, and he
vointed out in his speech of 29 November, 1938, the relation between "the
daring credit policy" of the Reichsbank and the aims of the Hitlerite foreign
policy. [ZC-611, US-622/.

¢/ Having made full use of nis plenary powers, Schacht carefully
developed and carried out a broad program of cconomic mobilizétion which
allowed the mitlerite leaders to wage war at any time considered most
favorable. In varticular, from the report of Schacht's deputy, Wohltat,

"the prevaration for mobilization carried out by the Plenivotentiary for

War Economy! shows that Schacht nrovided to the last detail for th

syetem of exploitation of the German economy in war time, all the way from
the utilization of industrial entervrises, of raw material resources and
manpower down to the distribution of 80,000,000 ration cards/EC-258,
US-625/. It is significent that this rewort was drawn uo a month

after Hitler's statement at the conference of 5 November, 1937, at which
Hitler set forth this concrete plan of aggression [PS-386, US-25/.

Summerizingz his past activity, Schackt wrote in January 1937: "1
worked out the preparation for war in accordance with the vrincivle that
the vlan of our war cconomy must be built in peace time in such a way that
there will be no necessity for any reorgenization in case of war". Schacht
confirmed his statement in Court/Transcrivt, Afternoon Session, 2 May, 1946/.

Schaciht consciously and deliberately vprepared Germany for war.

d/ The former Minister of War, Von Blomberg testified that: "Schacht
was fully cognizant of the plans for develovment and increase of the German
Armed forces, since he was constantly informed..... of all the financing
necessary for the development of the German armed forces" /US-838/

On 31 August, 1936, Von Blomberg informed Schacht that: "The
establishment of all the Air Force units must be comovleted by April 1, 1937,

and therefore large exvenditures must be entailed in 1936,.."/PS-1301, US-123/.
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In the spring of 19237, Schacht varticivated in the military excercises
in Godesberg [EC-174/,

/e In his memorsndum to Hitler on May 3, 1935, entitled the "Financing
of Reesrmament", Schacht wrote: "A speedy fulfillment of the vrogram for
rearmement on a mass scale is the basis of German policy, and, therefore,
everytiing else must be subordinate to this task; the completion of this
task; the completion of this task, the achievement of this purpose must meet
no obstacles...... "1PS-1168, US-37/

In his sveeck on 29 November 1938, Schaght announced that Reichsbank's
volicy made possible for Germeny to create an "unsurvassed mechine, and, in
turn, this war machine madec possible the realization of the aims of our
policy"/ EC-611, US-623/.

One must exclude the supwosition that Schacht was not informed as to
what purposes these wezpons were to serve since he could not but take into
consideration their unprecedented scale and an obvious vr-ference for
offensive types of weapons, heavy tenks, bombers, snd so on. Besides, Schacht
knew perfectly well that not a single country intended 4o wage war on Germany
nor had it any reasons %o do so,

a/ Schacht utilized the Militery might growing under his direction to
back Germany's territorial demands which grow in vrovortion to the increase
in armaments.

Schacht testified in court that "at first he confined himself (in his
demands) to the colonies which had once belonged to Germany." /Trenscrivt,
Morning Session, 3 May, 1948/.

in September, 1934, during his talk with the Americen Ambassador Dodd,
Schacht peinted out that he Y"desired annexation' if possible without war,
but throughk war, if the US would stay cut‘of it". [EC-461, UsS-58/.

In 1935, Schacht announced to the amerjicaen Consul Fuller: ®“Colonies are
essential to Germany. If it is possibdle, we shall acquire them through ‘
negotiations; if not, we shall serize them,"/ EC-450, US-62°/.

Schacht admitted in Court that military oressure out uvon Czechoslovgkia
was "in some megsure the result and the fruit of his labor', /Transcrint;

Morning Session, 3 May, 1946/.




b/ Schacht personally participated in the vlunder of private and state
property 0f the countries which became victims of Hitlerite aggressions,

The minutes of the conference of the Militsry-Economic Staff on 11
March, 1938, in which Schacht particivated, state that those present were
given Zitler's latest directives about the invasion of Austria. Further, the
minutes state stat: "After this, at the suggestion of Schacht, it was
decided that.... all the financial accounting will be made in Reichsmarks
at the rete of exchange!: 2 shillings for one Reichsmark"/ EC-421, US-p451.

Schacht admitted in court that he versonally was in charge of the seizure
of the Czechoslovak National Bank after the occuvation of Czechoslovakia.
/Transcript, Morning Session, 3 May, 1946/.

c/ 4t the beginning of 1940, Schacht offered Hitler his services for
negotiations with the United States of America in regasrd to the discontinuance
of 2id to Englend and ke informed Goering of his offer. PS-3700, US-780/.

d/ Schacht considered it his duty to greet and congratulate Eitler
publicly after the signing of armistice with France, although Schacht, better
than enyone else, understood thie usurpatory nature of the armistice.

/German Documentary, US-635/.

e/ In his letter tc Funk on 17 October, 1941, Schacht suzgested a more
effective explecitation of occupied territory., In this case, too, Schacht
acted on his own initiative/. EC-504 Us-830/.

Schacht also participated in the persecution of the Jews:

a/ de testified in court that he "continued the policy of the perse-
cution of the Jews as a matter of principle". /Transcriot, Afternoon Session,
2 May, 1946/ although, he stated, "t¢ a certain extent" it was a matter of
conscience which, however, "was not serious enocugh to brins about a bresk”
between him and the Nazis. (Same Transcrivt; also US-616).

b. In his capacity of Minister of Economy, Schacht siched a series of
decrees, in accordance with which the oroverty of the Jews in Germany was sub-
ject to plunder with impunity. (US-832 and US-616). Schacht confirmed in
Court the fact that he had signed a series of anti-semitic decrees, (Trans-

cript, Afterncon Session, 2 May, 1943.)
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and also from the post of the President of the Reichsbank on 20 November,
1939, and finally from the vost of the Minister without Portfolio in January
1943, the evidence submitted estsblishes the following:

A. The reason 1s not Schacht's disagreement with the economic vre-
varation for aggressive wars,

Three weeks before leeving the Ministry of Zconomy and the post of Pleni-
potentiary Geﬁcral for War Economy Schackt wrﬁte to Goering: ¥...I1 algo
don't consider that my opinioh can differ from yours on economic policy..."
(ZC-497, US-775).

In his reply Goering states: .. You promised me ybur supvort and
collaboration... You have repeated thispromise many times, even after
differcnces of opinion began t0 cre p up between us/EC-493, US-642./

Schacht testified in Court thet Goering and ke "Differed in matters of
procedure” /Transcript, Morning Session, 3 May, 1946/.

In the orcliminary examination Goering testified that Schackt's leaving
the Reichsbank "had no relation to the orogram of rearmement"/ US-648.

The vice-president of the Reichsbank, Puhl, confirmed that Schacht's
resignation from the Reichsbank Ean be explained by "his desire to extricate
himself from a dangerous situstion" which drvelovted as the result of Schachf”
own crooked finencizl overations. /EC-534, US-646/

b. The rcason is not Schacht's disavoroval of mass terror conducted
by the Hitlerites.

The witness for the Defense, Gesavius, testified that he constantly in-
formed Schacht of the criminal actions of the Gestapé, crcated by Goering,
and thet nevertheless, right uo to the cnd of 1936, Schacht looked for
for "Goering's support’ [Transcript Morning Session, 24 April, 1945/.

In his letter to Von Blomberg on 24 December, 1235, Schacht suggested
that Gestagpo apply "more cautiocus metaods" since the open terror of the
Gestavo "hinders the objectives of the armament" /Transcrint, Afternoon
Session, 2 May, 1946/.

On 30 Jenuary, 1937, Schacht was awarded a golden Party insigsnia by
Zitler. [EC-393, US-643/. As gtated in an official German wublication", he

wes able to0 be of greated helv to the Party than if ke were actusllv s memher
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Only in 1943, having understood esrlier than many other Germans, the
inevitability of the failurc of the Zitlerite regime, 4id Schacht estzblish
contact with the opvosition circles, however, doing nothing to helop devose
this regime. Therefore, it was not by chance that having found out these
connections of Schacht, Hitler still spared Schacht's life.

It is thus indisputable established that:

1) Schacht's actively assisted in the seizure of power by the Nazis;

2) During a period of 12 years Schacht closely collaborated with Hitler

3) Schacht orovided the cconomic and financisl basis for fho creation
of the Hitlerite military machine;

4) Schacit preparcd Germany's econemy for the wagming of aggressive wars;

5) Schacht varticivated in the persecution of Jews end in the vlunder
of territories occuvied by the Germans.

Therefeore, Schecht's leceding wart in the oroovarstion and execution of the

ommon criminal vlan is wroved.
The decision to acquit Schacht is in obvious contradiction with the
evidence in posscssion of the Tribunal

II. The Unfounded Acauittal of Def ndant Von Paven.

The verdict does not dispute the fact that von Papen prepared the way
for Hitler's apnointment to the pest of the Reichskanzler and that he actively
nelped Nazis in their seizure of power.

In a speech of the 2nd of November 1933, von Papen said the following
on the subject:

"Then and there, on becoming the Reiciskanzler (this was
in 1932) I spoke in favor of tlie young and fighting move-
ment for freedom; just @8 on the 30th of January I was
chosen by Fate to surrendor power into the hands of our
Kanzler and Fuelirer, so today I must $ell the German
veople and all these who have maintained their trust in
me: merciful God blessed Germany by granting her in these
deys of deeo sorrow a Further like this.®

/PS-2375/

& o 1t was von Psven who revoked Bruning's order dissolving the SS and

the S4, thus allowing the Nazis to realize their orogram of mess terror.
D-631).
Again it was the defendant who, by the avnlication of brute fores, did

awey with the Social Democrat Government of Braun and Severing. (Severing's




On the 4th January, 1933, Paven had a conference with Hitler, Hess,
and Eimmler. (D-632).
Papen participated in the vurge of the state meschirery of ell versonel

considered unreliable from the Nazi point of view; on the 21 of March, 1933,

he signed a decree creating svecial vpolitical tribunals; he had also signed

an order grenting amnesty to criminaels whose crimes were committed in the
course of the "national revolution®; Le perticivated in drafting the text
of the order "insuring party end state unity'; and so on.

Subsequently Papen faitiafully served the Hitler regime.

During the Putsch of 1934, Paven ordered his subordinste Tschirschky

to apvear in the Gestapo, knowing full well wiat awaited him there.

Tehirschky as is well known, was exccuted. (D-684).
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wiile Papen helped to keep the dloody murder secret from public ovinion.
(D-718).

Defendant played a tremecndous role in helping Nazis to take vossession
of Austria.

Three weeks after the assassination of Dollfuss, on the 26th of July,
1934, Hitler told Papen that he was being appointed minister to Vienna,
specially noting in a letter: "You have been and continue to}be in
vossession of my full and unlimited trust.® (PS-2799).

In this connection it is impossible to ignore the testimony of tke
American ambassador Messerschmidt who quoted Paven as saying that "the seizure
of Austria is only the first step® and that he, von Papen is in Austria for
the purposc of "furtiher weskening the Austrién ¢overnment. " (US-57).

Defendant was Hitler's chief advisor in effectinz plans for the seizure
of Austria. It was he who nrovosed seversl tactical maneuvers, t0 quiet the
vigilance of world opinion on the one hand, and allow Germany to'conclude her
war prebaratiOns, on the other.

This follows indisovutable from Papen's stzatement to the ZAustrian Minister
Berger-Waldeneck (PS-1760), from the Revert of Gesuleiter Reuner of 6 July,
1939 (US-61), from Papen's Report to Hitler of 26 Ausust 1936, (PS-2046), from
Papen's Report to Hitler of 1 September 1936 (US-67), and from a series of
other documents whicn had been subﬁitted in evidence.

Papen pleyed this game until the issuance of the order for alerting the
German 4rmed Ferces for moving inte austria (Us-62). He participated in
arrenging the conference hetween Hitler and Schuschnigg of 12 February 1938
(Us-69).

It was Papen who in a letter to Hitler emvphatically recommended that
financizl aid be given the Nazi organization in Austria known as the "Zreedom
Union®, specifically for "its fight against the Jewry * (PS-2830).

Indisvutable apoecars the fact of the Nazi seizure of Austria and of
Papen's participation in this act of aggression. After the occuvation of
Austria, Ritler rewarded von Papen with the golden insignia of the Nazi Party

/D-632/ .

Neither is it possible to ignore von Paven's role as agent vrovocateur
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The post of ambassador tc Turkey was at the time of considerable imvor-
tance in helping the Nazis realize their aggressive plans.

The official Nazi biographer wrote about von Papcn as follows:

"Shortly (after the occupation of Austria) t:ie Fuehrer had

necd of von Papen's services again and on 18 April, 1939, he,

therefore, apvointed him Gorman Ambassador in Ankare" [D-632/.

It should glso be noted that for his Turkish activities, Eitler rewsrded
von Paper with the Knight's Cross for his "Military services®". /D-632/.

Thus evidence submitted estzblisies beyond doubt that:

1. 7Von Papen actively esided the Nazis in their seizure of power.

2. Von Papen used both his efforts and his connections to solidify and
strengtiien the Hitlorian‘tcrroristic regime in Germany.

3. Von Papen actively particivated in the Nazi sgrression agsinst
Austypia culminating in its occupation.

4, Von Papen faithfully served EHitler uo to the very and eiding the
Nazi plens of agroression botk with his 2bility and his divlomstic skill,

It therefore follows that Defendant von Papen berrs considerable
respensibility for the crimes of the Hitlerite regime.

Tor these ressons I cennot consent to the acquittel of Defendant wvon
Pepen.

III. The Unfounded Acquittal of Defendent Fritzgche.

The scquittal of Defendent Hane Fritzsche follows from the reasoning tr
Fritzsche, allegedly, had not reached in Termany the official position
making him responsible for the criminal actions of the Hitler regime end thet
his own personal activity in this respect cannot be considered criminal.

The verdict characterizes him as a secondery figure carrying out the directives
of Goebbels and Ribbentrop,.and of the Rgich Press Director Dietrich.

The verdict does not teke into consideration or mention the fact that it
was Fritzsche who until 1942 was the director de fscto of the Reich press and
that, accoprding to himself, subscquent to 1942 he became the "Commender-in-chief
of the German redio." [Trenscrint, Morning Session, 23 January, 1946/

For the correct definition of the fole of Defendent Hens Tritzsche it is
necessary, firstly, to keep clearly in mind the imwortance attached by Hitler

end his closcst associstes (as Goering, for examole) t6 Drovzesnde in



the most importent and essential factors in the success of conducting an
agoressive war.

The Germany of Hitler, provagenda was invariably a factor in preparing
and conducting acts of aggression and in training the Germen populace to
accept obediently the criminal enterprises of German fascism.

The aims of these enterpriscs were served by a mmuge and well centralized
propagends machinery. With the help of the police controls and of a system of
censorship it was vossible to do away 2ltogether with the frecdom of woress
and of sveech.

The basic method of the Nazi vrovagendistic activity lay in the false
presentation of facts. This is stated quite frankly in Hitler's "Mein Kamof";
"With the help of a skilful and continuous spolication of vrovagends it is
possible to make the peovle conceive even of heaven as hell and also meke
them consider heavenly the most miserly existence." [US-276, p. 302/.

The dissemination of provocative lies and the systematic decevtion of
public opinion were as necesgary to the Hitlerites for the reslization of thei-
vlans as were the production of armements and the drafting of militasry plans.
Without propegandas, founded on the total eclipse of the frerdom of vpress and
of speech, it would not have been possible for German Faescism t0 rezlize its
aggressive intentions, to lay the groundwork and then to put to practice the
war crimes and tae crimes ggainst humanity.

In the propzgands system of the Zitler Statc it was the daily oress snd
the radio tihat were the most important wegvoOns.

In his court testimony, Dcfendant Goering named three factors as
essential in the successful conduct of modern war according to the Nazi conécbt.

nsmely, (1) the military overations of the armed forces, (2) aconomic warfare,

(3) vrovagendz, With reference to the latter he sesid: "Promagands has tre-

mendous value, varticularly vrovagands carriecd by mezns of radio,.......

Germeny has leesrncd this through exverience better then anyone eclse". /Emslish
Trenscriot, po. 5981-5982/

With such concepts in ascendance it is impossible t0 supvoosc that the
suprement rulers of the Reich would appoint to the post of the director of rzdio

propaganda who supervised radio activity of all the broadcastins comvanies
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The voint of view of the verdict contrsdicts both the evidence submitted
and the gctual state of affeirs.

Beginning with 1942 and into 1945 Fritgzgche was not only Chief of the
Radio Department of the Reich Ministry of Propaganda but also "Plenivotentizr:
for the Political Organization of Radio in Grester Germany". This circumstznce
is fully proven by the sworn affidavit of Fritzsche himsclf. [PS-3469, US-721/
It thus follows that not at all was Fritzsche merely "one of the twelve devart-
mentai chiefs in the Ministry of Provagsnda" was acquired resvonsibility for al
radio propaganda only towerds the end of the wer, as the vrrdict asserts.

Fritzsche was the politiczl director of the German radio up and into
1945 i.e. up to the roment of German defezt and cepitulation. For this reason
it is Fritzsche who bears responsibility for the false and provocative broad-
caste of the German radio during the years of the war.

As ckief of the Press Section inside Germany it was also Fritzsche who
was responsible for the activity of the German dsily vress consisting of 2300
newspapers. It was Fritzsche who created znd perfected the Informstion Section
winning from the Reich Government for the purpose an increase in the subsidy
grented the newspapers from 400,000 to 4,000,000 merks. Subsequently Fritzsche
participated energeticelly in the development of the propaganda campaigns
preparatory to the acts of agrression agszinst Czecho-slovakia snd Poland.
/Trenscrivt, Morning Session, 23 January, 1946/. A similar ective oropagsnds
campaign was conducted by the Defendant prior to the attach on Yuecslavia =as
he himself admitted on ozth in court /Trenscriot, Morning Session., 23 Jesnuary,

1946/.
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Fritggche was informed of the plan to attsck the Soviet Union and was put
Mgy courant" the military intentions at & confereice with Rosenberg.
/PS-1039, US-146, Rosenberg's Written Report to Hitler on the Subject of
Preliminary Drafts on Bastern Europesn Problems/.

Fritzsche headed the German press cezmpaign falsifying revorts of Germany's
aggressive war against France, Englend, Horway, the Soviet Union, the USA,
and the other states.

The assertion that Fritzsche was not informed of the war crimes =nd the
crimes agrinst humanity then being perpvetrated by the Hitlerites in the
occupied regious does not agree with the facts. ZFrom Fritzschel's testimony
in court it is obvious that slresdy in Msy 1942, while in the Provagsnde
Section of the 6th Army, he was awarc of Hitler's decree ordering execution
for all Soviet political workers and Soviet intellectuals, the so-czlled
"Commissar Decree". It is 2ls0 estzblisihed that already at the beginning of
nostilities Fritzsche was fully esware of the fact that the Nazis were cerry-
ing out their decision to do awsy with all Jews in Burove. TFor instance, when
commonting on Hitler's statement that "among results of the war there will be
the annikhiletion of the Jewish race in Europe" /[p.248 of the transcript/.
Fritgsche stated that: "As Fuchrer vredicted it will cccur in the event of

war in Europe, the fate of the European Jewry turned out to be quite sad.”

[p.3231 of the transcriot/. It is further established that the Defendant
systematically preached the anti-social theory of rasce hstred and character-
ized vpeoples inhabiting countries victimized by ageression as "sublumans®
/Transcriot, Morning Session, 26 April, 1946, v.83; and of the afternoon
session, pp. 1-2/.

When the fate of Nazi Germany bocame clear, Tritzsche ceme out with
energetic support of the Defendent Msrtin Bormenn and of other feonmetical
Hitler adherents who organized the undercover fascist associstion, the so-
called "Werewolf."

On the 7th of April, 1945, for examvle, in his last radio sddress,
Fritzsche agiteted for all the civilien population of Germany to teke ective

part in the activities of this terroristic Nazi undergroup orgenization.

He said: "Let no one be surprised to find the civilien vopulation,
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occupied snd even after occuvnztion has teken place. We shall call this
phenomenon "Werewolf" since it will heve arisen without any preliminary
planning and witilout a'definite orgsnization, out of the very instinct of
life." /USSR-496/

In his radio addresses Fritzsche welcomed the Germen use of the new
terror wesvons in conducting the war, specifically the use of the "V"
rockets. On receiving = plan for the introduction of bactorisl wsrfare he
immediately forwarded it to the OKW for acceptznce. /USSR-484, Zvidence
submitted during the Afternoon Session, 28 June, 194¢/.

I consider Fritgsche's resvonsibility fully proven. His sctivity hed a
most basic relation to the prevarztion snd the conduct of aggressive warfare

s well as to the other crimes of the Hitler regime.

=15




IV. Concerning the sentence of the defendant Rudolf Hess. The Judgment

of the Tribunal correctly and adegquately portrays the outstsnding position
woich Rudolf Hess occupied in the leadership of the Nazi party and state.
Ze wes indeed mitler's closest personsl confident end his authority was
exceedingly great: In this connection it is sufficient to quote Hitler's
decree appointing Hess as kis Deputy: "I hereby apooint Hess as my deputy
and give him full power to mske decisions in my name on all questions of
Perty Lesdership (Trznscript 7 February 1946, afterncon. )

But the suthcrity of Zess wess not only confined to questions of Perty
leadershin.

The official NSDAP publication "Party Yezr Book for 1941", which was
admitted as USA Exhibit No., 255, PS-3163, states thet:,.. "In addition to the
duties of Party leadership, the ?§¥g€¥ of the Feuhrer has far-reaching ovowers
in the field of the State. These are/varticipstion in nstionsl snd Stste
legislation, including the preparation of Fuehrer's order. The Deputy of
the Fuehrer in this way v:zlidetes the concention of the Party...

Approval of the Deputy of the Fuehrer of proposed epvointments for officisl
and lebor service lezders. Three, securing the influence of the Party over
the self-government of the municipel units." (Doc. USA-255, PS-3163)

Hess was an active suppvorter of ditler's aggressive policy. The crimes
against peece committed by him arc de:1lt with in sufficient deteil in the

Judgment. The mission underteken by Hess in flying to Englend should be con~

sidered as the.last of these crimes, zs it was underteken in the hope of

facilitating the realization of aggression agsinst the Soviet Union by
temoorarily restrsining England from fighting,

The fzilure of this mission led to Hess's isclstion snd he took no
direct pert in the plenning and commission of subsequent crimes of the Hitler
regime. There can be no doubt, however, that Hess did everything mossible
for the opreparstion of these crimes.

Hess, together with Himmler, occupied the role of creztor of the SS
police orgsnizetions of German fascism which efterwerds committed the most

ruthless crimes sgeinst humenity. The defendent clearly pointed out the

"Specisl taBks" which feced the SS formestions on occupied territories.
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order tarough the Party Chencellory which mede aiding the conscription of
Perty members into thege orgenizetions by ell means compulsory for Party
org{hsé He outlined the tesks get before the Waffen-S° = follows:

"The unite of the Waffen-S® composed of National Socielists are more
suitable than other armed units for the specific tesks to be solved in the
occupied Eastern terrjtories due to tihe inten;iva'treining in fega:d to question
of race and nationality, (GB—BGZ. 8245-P§) | |

As early as 1934 the Defendant lnltlated & proposal that the so-ca slled sD
under the Reichsfuehrer S8 (Security Service) pe given extraordinary powers
and thus hecome the leading force in Nazi Germany.

On thelgth of June 1934 Hess isgged 2 decree in accordsnce with which
the "Security Service of the Reichsfuchrer SS! was declared to be the "sole
polltlcal.news end defrnse. service of the Partyl, (GB-257),

Thus thke Defendant played e direct part in the crestion and ccnsolid-tion
of the systen of speecial police orgsns which were being preparcd for the céu»
mission §f crimes _on occupied territories, '

We find Hess to have always been an ajvocate of tie men-hating "mester
race" theory, In e speech mede on the 16th Jenuary 1937 wiile speaking of the
education .of the German nation, Hess pointed out: "Thug, they ére being ﬁdugated
to put Germané ebove the subjects of a foreign nation, regerdless of their .
positlons or their origin," (GB- 253, 33124-PS),

so-celled

Hess signed tnefLaw for tihe Protection of Blood end nonour" on the 15th
September 1835 (Usa 300, 3179—PS). The body of this law atetps that "the '
Fuenrer 8 denutj is Luthorlzed,ta 1ssu¢ ‘all neceSSary decrees and directives“
for thc Dr&CuL"D’ r°&*lZat10n o* the "Nur;berg ducrecs " : i

On the 14;n of November 1935. mass iagued<an @réiaance-under*zho Rg}ch
citlzenshipjlaw in aoaorﬁance with which the ans were denied the righi to
vote ab eleo-tionsm hold pub llc offlc\ (G-B 358 14-17-PS)

_ On tnL 20th of May 1988 e decrgr signed Hy hess oxtended tﬁe Nurnherg
lews to Aus'crie (6B-259, 224-PS).

On October i 2 1939 Hess s1gnéd‘e.decfee crezting the sdmlnls‘ration of
Polzsn occupled terrltorles (RelCﬂSFCSEthIEtt N 210 1939 » 2077) Arti¢le 2

of this decree gave the ae?ondent rr:nk the power of dlctptor



There is esufficiently convicing cvidence showing that this Defendant

did not limit himself to this genersl directive which introduced into the
occupied Polish territories & regime of unbridled terror. A4s is shown in the
letter of the Reichsminister of Jﬁstice to the Chief of the Reichschancellory
dated April 17, 1941, Hess was the initiator in the formation of speciel

"penal laws" for Poles and Jews in occupied Eastern territories, The role of

this Defendesnt in the drawing up of these "lews" is charascterized by the Minister
of Justice in the following words:

"In accordance with the opinion of the Fuehrer's devuty I sterted from

ordinary punishment,... Under these new kinds of ounishment, orisoners sre to
be lodged outside prisons in camvs and are to be forced to do heavy and
hesviest labour,... The introduction of corvorsl vunishment whick the Deputy
of the Fuehrer has brought up for discussion has not been included in the
dreft, I can not ag;ee to this type of vunishment.....The procedure for en-
forcing prosecution has been ebrogeted, for it seemed intolersble that Poles
or Jews should be sble to instigate & public indictment. Poles end Jews have
elso been deprived of the right to prosecute in their own names or join the
public prosecution in an zction....From the very beginning it was intendéed to
intensify special trestment in case of need: When this necessity became
actuel = supnlementary decree was issued to which the Fuehrer's deputy refers _.f
$0 in his letter.... (4B 268 3-96). 1

Thus, there can be no doubt that was tozether with the other major war

criminals is guilty of crimes azeinst umenity.

Taking into considerztion that amongz voliticel leaders of Hitlerite A

A~

Germany Hess was third in significence end vlayed = decisive role in the crimes
of the Nzzi regime, I consider the only justified sentence in his cese can be-

L desth.




W Incorrect Judgment With Regerd to the R_ich Cabinet

The Prosecution has posed before the Tribunal the gquestion of declaring
the Reich Cabinet e criminal orgenization. The verdict rejects the claim of
the Prosccution, unfoundedly refusing to declare Hitler Government criminal
crgzanization,

Wish such &« decision I cennot sgree.

The Tribunal considers it proven thet the Hitlerites have committed
innumerabtle and monstrous crimes.

The Tribunel #lso considers it proven that those crimes, were as =2 rule
conmitted intentionally =nd on an orgsnized scsle, according to previously
prepared plans and directives [/"Plan Barberossa , "Night =nd Fogz", "Bullet",
ete./

The Tribunal has declared severzl of the Nazi mess orgenizsations criminal
the orgenizations founded for the realizstion snd ovutting to orzctice the
plens of the Hitler Governnent.

iIn view-of this it apovears psrticularly untenzble and rationally in—
correct to refuse to declerc the Reich Cabinet, the directing organ of the
Stete with & direct and sctive role in the working out of the criqinal enter-
prises, & crimingl orgesnizstion. The members of this directing staff had
grest power, esch hesded an approvriate government sgency, each particivsted
in prepering and realizing the Nazi progran.

In confirmation it is deemed proper to cite several facts:

1. Immedistely after the Nazi ascent to power —— on the 24th of Mzrech,
1933 —-— therc was a law passed entitled "The Law of Defense of the People and
the State! whereby the Reich Csbinet, besides the Reichstag, received the
right of issuing new legislature.

On the 26 of Mey 1933 the Reich Government issued 2 decree ordering the

confiscation of the proverty of 211 Communist orgsnizations =nd on the 14th
of June, the same yesr, it also confiscatel the vproverty of the Social
Democrst orgenizations. On the 1st of Dec*mber, 1933, the Reich Government
issued the law "Ensuring Party and State Unity",

Following through its program of liquidsting democratic institutions, in

1934 the Government passed a law of the "Reconstruction of the Reich" whereby




® *
bodies. Reichstzsg thereby became an institution without functional mesning.
Trenscrint, Afterncon Session, November 22, 1945, pv.23-25/.

By the law of 7 April 1933 and others, all Reich government employees,
including judges,lever noted for any enti-Nezi tendencies or ever having be-
longed to loftist organizations, as well as all Jews, were to be removed from
the zovernment service and substituted by Nazis. In accordance with the
"Bzsic Positions of the German Law on Governuent Employees" of the 26 of
January‘1957, "the inner harmony of the official and the Nezi party is a
necessary orosuopposition of‘his eppointment to his post,.. government employee
mist be the executors of the will of the National Socislist St=te, directed by
the NSDAP" /Defense Exhidit No. 28, ».59/.

On the lst of May, 1934, there was created the Ministry of Educstion
instructed to trein students in the spirit of militarism, of rscisl hatred,
end in terms of reslity thoroughly falsified by Nezi ideology. /PS-2078/.

Free trade unions were abolished, tﬁeir property confiscoted, and the
nejority of the leaders jeiled.

To suporess even & semblence of resistance the Government created the
Gestapo and the concentretion cemps. Withgut any trial or even a concrete
charze hundreds of thousands of persons were arrested end then done away with
merely on a suspicion of an anti-Nzzi tendence.

There were issued the so-czlled Nurnberg Laws against the Jews. Hess and
Frick, both members of the Reich Government, implemented these by additional
decrees.

It was the activity of the R@ich Cabinet thet brought an the wer which
took millions of humen lives and cesused inestimable dsmoge in property and in
sufferins borne by the many nations.

On the 4th of February 1938, Hitler orgsnized the Secret Council of
Ministers defining its activity as follows: "To aid me by advice on vroblems
of foreign policies I am cresting this secret council® /"R&¥ichsgesectzhlatt”
for 1938, Part I, p.112, PS-2031/. The foreigsn policy of the Eitler Govern-
ment was the policy of aggression. For this reasson the members of the secrot
council should be held responsible for thisbpolicy. There were sttemvts in

court to represent the secret council as & fictitious orgenizstion, never
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sufficient té reczll Rosenberg's letter to Hitler where the former insistently
tried to be sppointed member of the secret council of ninisters -- to
eporeciste fully the sigznificance of the council.

Even nore imwortant oracticelly in conducting eagoressive warfsre was the
Reich Defense Council headed by Goering. The following were rembers of the
Defense Council, as is well known: Hess, Frick, Funk, Keitel,'Rander.

Lemmers /PS-2194 and 2018/.
Goering charscterized the function of the Defense Council and its role in

war orepar=ations ps follows, during the court session of 23 June 1239: "The

Defense Council of the Reich wes the decidins Reich orgen on g1l questions
concerning proverstion for wer". /PS-3787, US-782/.

At the sanc tine Goering exvhasized the fact that "the meetings of the
Defense Council always took place for the purpose of meking the nost imwortent
decisions". From the ninutes of these mretings, submitted as evidence by the
Prosecution, it is quite clear tast the Council nmade very important decisions
indeed. The minutes elso show that other cabinet nministers sometimes took
part in the meetings of the Council for the Defense alongside the memters of
the Council when wer enterprises and war preveredness were discussed.

For exzmvle, the following Cebinet ministers took vart in the meeting of
23 June 1939: of Lahbor, of Food and Azriculture, of Finance, of Commnication
and a nunmber of others, while the minutes of the meeting were sent to 211 the
menbers of the cabinet. /US-782/.

The verdict of the Tribunal justly voints out certein veculisrities of
the Hitler Government as the directing orgen of the state, namely: the
ebsence of regular csbinet meetings, the occasional issugnce of laws by the
individual ministers heving unusuel indevendence of action, the tremondous ver-
sonal power of Zitler himself. These peculisrities do not refute Tyt on the
contrert further confirm the conclusion that the Hitler Government is not en
ordinary renk-of-the-file cebinet but a criminal orgsnization.

Certainly Hitler had en unusuel messure of personal power but this in no
way frees of responsibility the memlers of his cabinet who were his convinced

followers and the actual executors of his program until and when the day of

reckoning arrived.
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VI. Incorrect Judsment With Regard to the Genersl Steff
and the OKW

The verdict incorrectly rejects the accusation of criminal activity
directed aveinst the General Steff and the OKW.

The rejection of the accusation of criminal activity of the Genersl Staff
and of the CKW contrzdicts both the actusl situation and the evidence sub-
mitted in the course of the trial. ;

It has been established Deyond doubt that the leadership coros of the
Armed Forces of Nazi Germany together with the SS~-Party machine, revresented
the most imvortant agency in the prepering and rezlizing the Nazi aggressive
and men-hatinz progran. This was constently and forcefully reitersted by the
Hitlerites themselves in their official Tulletins meant for the officer per-
sonnel of the armed forces. In the Nazi Party Bulletin called "Politics and
the Officer in the III Reich" it is quite clearly stated that the Nazi regime
is founded on "two pillars: the Party and the Armed Forces. 3Both are forms
of exvression of the same vhilosoohy of life", "the tasks before the Party and
the Armed Forces are in an organic relationship to each other and esch hears
the same responsibility.... both these agencies devend on each other's success
or failure" [PS-4060, US-928, ».4/

This organic interrelationship between the Nezi Party and the S5 on the
one hend end the Nazi Armed Forces on the other hand, was varticulerly evident
smong the upver circles of militery hierarchy which the Indictment grouvs
together under the concept of criminal orgenization -~ that is, among the
mesbers of the Generel Staff and the OKW.

The very selection of members of the Supreme Command of the Army in Nazi
Germeny was based on the criteria of their loysaslty to the regime and their
readiness not only tc pursue sggressive militeristic policies but also to ful-
£i11 such svecial directives as related to trestment meéted out to prisoners-
of-war and to the civilian pooulations of occupied territories.

The leaders of the Geruan Armed Forces were not merely officers who
reached certain levels of the military hierarchy. They revresented, first of
all, a closely-knit group which was entrusted with the most secret nlans of
the Nazi leadershiv. ZEvidence submitted to the Tribunal has fully confirmed

the contention that the military leaders of Germany justified this trust com-




Hitler's plans,

It is not accidental that at the head of the Air Forcr stood the "Second
man" of the Nazi Reich, naumely Goering; that the commander-in-chief of the
Nevy was Doenitz, subsequently desiznated by Hitler to be the latter's
successor; that the command of the Ground Forces was concentrated in the hands
of Xeitel who signed the major part of the decrees concerning the execution
of the prisoners-of-wer and of the civilians in occupied territories.

Thus the comparisons nede with the organization of the supreme commands
in Allied countries cannot be considered valid. In a democratic country, not
one self-respecting militgry ¢Xpert would agree to vrevare pvlans for mess
reprisals and merciless killings of vrisoners-of-war side by side with plans
of the purc.lyailitary and strategic character.

Meanwhile it is precisely such matt-rs that occuvied the supreme command
of the General Staff ~nd of #heCEW in Nazi Ggrmany. The commission by thenm
of the heaviest crimes against peace. of the war crimes, and of the crimes
ageinst Iumanity is not denied but is varticularly cmohesized in the verdict
of the Tribunal, And yet the commission of these crimes has not drouszht the
logicel conclusion.

The verdict states;

"They have been a.disgrace>to.the  honorgble profession. of arms

Without their military suidance the aggressive ambitions of

Hitler and his fellow Nazis would have been gcademic and sterile...!
And sulbsequently:

"Many of these men have made a mockery of the soldier's oath of
oredience t0 nilitary orders. When it suits their defense they say
they had to obey; when confrented with Hitler's brutal crimes,
which arc shown to have been within their general knowledge, they
say they disobeyed. The trutna is they actively participated in all
these crimcs, or sat silent and acquiescent, witnessing the commission

of crimes on a scale larger and norce saocking than the world ever
had the migfortune to know,. Tnis must be sgid.®

All these assertions in thc verdict are correct and arc based on numerous
and reliable depositioﬁs. The only thing that remains incomprechensible is the
reasoning which does not recognize as criminel that "hundred of higher rank-
ing officers" who causcd the world and their own country so much sorrow, the
reasons backing the decision not to declare the orssnization criminal.

The verdict advances the following recasons for the decision, reasons

Mi1i+te rontradd Aatoary o R Fandta®
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a) That the crimes were committed by revresentatives of the ngeral
Staff and of the CKW as private individuals and not as members of a
crininal conspirgey.

h) That the Ceneral Staff and the OKW‘were nerely wespons in the hands
of the conspirstors and interpreters or executors of the conspirators' will.

Numerous evidence disputes such conclusions.




1. The leading representatives of the General Staff and of the OKW,

along with 8 small circle of the higher Hitlerite officials, were called

upon by the conspirators to participate in the development and the reslization

of the plans of ageression, not as passive functionaries, hut as active

varticivants in the consviracy ageinst veace and humanity,

Without their adwvice and active cooperation, Hitler could not have solved
these problems.

In the majority of cases their opinion was decisive. It is impossihle to
imagine how tiec aggressive plans of ditler's Germany could have been realized
hed it not been for the full supvort ziven him by the leading staff members of
the armed forces.

Least of all did Hitler conceal his criminal plans and motivations from
the leaders of the Supreme Command.

For instance, while prepering for the attack on Poland, as early as 29
May, 1939, at a conference with the high military commanders of the new
Reich Chancellory, he stated:

"For us the matter consists of the expansion of 'Lebensraum' to

the East.!

"Thus the question of svaring Poland cannot be considered, and,
instead, we have to consider the decision to attack Poland at the

first opvortunity." (1-79).

Long before the seizure of Czechoslovekia, in g directive of 30 May, 1938,
Hitler, addressing the revoresentatives of the Suvreme Commaﬁd, cynically stated:

"Prom the military and voolitical point of view, the most favorable
time is a lightning attack on the basis of some incident, by which

Germany will have heen strongly provoked and which will morally

justify the military measures to at least vpart of the world ovirnion."

(Ps-3e8).

Prior to the invasion of Yugoslavia, in a directive dated 27 March, 1941,
addressine the revresentatives of the High Command, Hitler wrote:

"Even if Yugoslavia declares its loyalty, it rust be considered an enemy
end must, therefore, be smashed as soon as possible." [PS-1746/

While preparing for the invasion of USSR, Hitler invited the renfesenta—




In the instructions to aoply propaganda in the region "Barbarossa,"
issued by the OKW in June, 1941, it is pointed out that:

"For the time we should not have propagende directed at the dismemberment
of the Soviet Union". /[PS-446/

.

As esrly as 13 May, 1941, OKW ordered the troovs to use any terrorist
messures zgzinst the civilian populations of the temporarily occuvied regions
of the Soviet Union."

Here a special stioulation read: "To confirm only such sentences as are

in accordence with the volitical intentions of the Leadershiv." /G-50/

& OKW and the General Staff issurd the most brutal decreces and orders for

relentless messures ageinst the unarmed weaceful vovulation and the wrisoners

of war.

In the "decrece of special liability to punishment in the region "Barbareossa
while prevaring for the attack upon the Soviet Union, the OKW abolished before-
hand the jurisdiction of the military courts, grznting the right of repressions
over the oeaceful povulation to individual officers and soldiers.

It is particularly stated there that:

“Crimes of hostile civilians are excluded from the jurisdiction of the
court martials.. .Y, "Suspected clements must be immediately delivered to the
officer. The latter will decideé whether they should be shot,....", M"it is
absolutely forhidden to hold suspects for the purpose of bringing them to

triel." There arc glso provisions for "the most extreme measures, and, in

particular, 'Measures for mass viclence', if circumstances do not vermit the
rapid detection of the sailty. "

In the same Decree of the OKW the psuarantee of imwunity was assured in
advence to the military criminals from the service mersonnel of the Germen Army.
It states there as follows: '"The hringing of suits of actions, committed by
officisls of th¢ Army end by the service versonnel ageinst hostile civilians is
not olLligstory even in cases where wuch actions st the same time constitute
militery crimes or offences,...."

In the course of the war the Aigh Command consistently followed this

velicy, increasing its terroristicactims with regard to vrisoners of war and
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The OKW directive of 16 Séptember, 1941, states:

"It is imvortant to realize that a man life in the countries te¢ which
this refers, nmcans nothing, and that intimidating action is possihle only throush
the application of unusual brutslity" og/.

Addressing the commanders of the army grouvs on 23 July, 1941, the OKW
simply briefed them as follows: "It is not in the demand fer additional sccurity
detachments, but in the apvlication of agporonriaste draconic measures that the
commanding officers must use to keep order in the regions under their juris-
diction® [PS-459/.

The OKW directive of 16 December, 1941, states:

"The troows... have the right and are ohlized to apvly... any measures

whatsoever glso against women and children if this contributes to success....

/USSR-~16/.




Among the most brutal OKW directives concerning the treatment of
orisoners of war one must consider the order entitled "Night and Fog". The
reasons for rescrting to cavital punishment for vrisoners of war were
offences, which accordint to international conventions, generally should
not carry any punishment; for examvle, escgve from the camm.

The order states:

"Penalty for such offences, consisting of loss of freedom and even
a life sentence is a sign of weskness. Only death scntence or measures -
which entail ignorance of the fate of the zuilty by local vovulation will
achieve real effectiveness. [1-90, US-224, Transcrivnt, Afternoon Session
25 January, 1946/

In the course of the present trisl sgrest deal of evidence of apvle-
cation of this order has been submitted. One of the examvle of this kind

of crime is the murder of 50 officer-pilots. Thke fact that this crime was

insoired by the zmigh Command cannot be doubted.

OKW also issued an order for the destruction of the "Commando™ units,

The original order was submitted to the Court /PS-498, US-501/ According
to this order, officers and soldiers of the "Commando! units had te be .shot,
except inczses when they were to be questicned, after which they were
shot in any case.

This order was unswervinzly carried out by the cormmanding officers
of army units. In June 1944 Rundstudt, the commander-in-chief of the
Germen troovs in the West, reported thet Eitler's order in regard to
"the trestment of the Commando grouvs of the enemy is still being carried
out" /PS-531, US-530/

3. The High Command, along with the SS and the Police, is guilty

of the most Lrutesl vpolice agtions in the occuvied regions,

The instructions releting to speci:zl regions, issuecd by OKW on 13 Mare
1941 contemplated the nccessity of synchronizing the activities in occupni
territories between the army command and the Reicisfucirer of the SS. 4s is\
seen from the testimony of the chief of the 3d Department of RSE:x and who
was concurrently chief of the Binsatzgrupve "D¥, Otto Ohlendorf, end of the

cnhief of the VI Devertment of RSHA. Welter Schellenbers. in accordznce with
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OKW instructions there was an agreement made between the general staff and
the RSHA about the organization of swmecial "overational grouvs' of the
Security Police and SD - "einsatzgerupven!", assiened to the avvrovriate army
detachments.

Crimes committed by the einsatzsrupven on the territory of the tem-
porarily occupied regions arc countless. The einssztzgrupoen were acting
in close contact with the commanding officers of the approvpriate army
Srouns.

The following excerpt from the report of Einsatzaruppe "A" is exiremely
cheracteristic ss evidence:

", ..zmong our functions as the establishment of versonal lisiaon with

the commending officer both at the front and in the rear. It must be

vointed out that the relations with the army were of the best, in some cases
very close, almost hearty, as, for instance, the commander of the tank groun,
Colonel-General zZoponer® [L-180/.

4. The revresent=tives of the Zigh Command acted in all theeschelons

of the army as members of a criminal grouo.

In spite of the violation of internationsl law =nd of the customs o0Ff
wer, the directives of the OKW and of the General Staff and the command of
individual army units byt were avolied in life and were augmented by even
more brutal orders issued as immlementation to these directives.

In this connection it is characteristic to note the directive
of Fieldmarshal von Reichenau, Army troop commander, addressed to his
goldiers: "The soldier in the esstern territories is not only a warrier
gskilled in the art of warfare but a teasrer of a merciless national idology."
And elsewhere, calling for the extermination of the Jews, Reichmau wrote:
"Thus the soldier must he in full cognizance of the necessity for harsh snd
just revenge on those sub-humans / the Jews". (US4-556).

As snother examole the order of Fieldmsrsnal von Mannstein addressed
to his soldiers can be referred to. On the basis of the "politicel aims
of the war" the Fieldmarshal cynically sppealed to his soldiers to wage

the war in violation of the "recognizcd laws ofwarfare in Furope (USA-927).



‘ Hitlerite Army comorised a highly dengerous criminal organization.
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! I consider it nmy duty as & Judge to draw up my dissenting opinion

—

concerning those immortent questions in which I disagree with the decision
sdooted by the members of the Tribunsal.

Soviet Member IMT

Major Generel Jurisp rudence

Rl NIREREI s . . 1946 I.7. Nikitchenko
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